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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To The Members of Berggruen Hotels Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Berggruen Hotels
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2020
and the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, statement of
Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("IND AS"”) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 315t March, 2020, and its loss, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw out your attention to note 37 of the Ind AS financial statements which sets out
Company’s assessment of Going concern assumption and financial impact on account of COVID
19 pandemic situation. Based on these assessments, the management has concluded that the
Company will continue as a going concern and will be able to meet all of its obligations as well
as recover the carrying amount of its assets as on March 31, 2020.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the *Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statementis and Auditor’s Report Thereon
e The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
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information obtained at the date of this auditor’s report is information included in the
Director’s Report, Chairman’s statement, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

e Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company'’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

f
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professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.




NANGIA & CO LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Reporting on comparatives in case of first Ind AS financial statements

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2019 and
the related transition date opening balance sheet as at 1st April 2018 included in these
standalone financial statements, have been prepared after adjusting previously issued the
standalone financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 to comply with Ind AS. The previously issued financial statements were
audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the year ended 31st March 2019 and 31st
March 2018 dated September 25, 2019 and September 18, 2018 respectively expressed an
unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Adjustments made to the previously issued
financial statements to comply with Ind AS have been audited by us.

Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified in respect of this the above matters on
the comparative financial information.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the "Annexure - A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), and the Cash Flow Statement (and statement of changes in equity) dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, with read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 315t March,
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31t March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this
report.

g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2020;

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance

L
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opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 32(c) to the Ind AS
financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN 002391C/N500069

Probeck greunsal

Prateek Agrawal
Partner
Membership # 402826

Signed at Gurugram on May 28, 2020
UDIN 20402826 AAAAEN3229
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditors Report

[Refer to in our separate report of even date]

Annexure referred to under the heading of "Report on Other Legal

and Regulatory

Requirements” of our Report of even date to the members of Berggruen Hotels Private Limited
on the financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2020 and based on the audit
procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations
given to us and the books of accounts and other records examined by us in the normal course
of audit, we report that:

I1

11

IV

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including

quantitative details and situation of its fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by the

(c)

management in a phased periodical manner, which in our opinion is
reasonable, having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of the
assets. As informed to us no material discrepancies were noticed in such
physical verification.

Title deeds in respect of all immovable properties are held in the name of the
company.

As explained to us physical verification has been conducted by the
management at reasonable interval in respect of inventories of finished goods,
stores, spares parts and raw material. However on account of Lockdown
imposed by Government, we were not able to observe physical verification
being conducted by the management at year end.. In our opinion, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable. We were explained that no
material discrepancies have been noticed on physical verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of para
3(iii)(a) to 3(iii) (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not given any loan to Directors or persons connected with them as per the
provisions mentioned in section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not made any investments, loans, guarantees and securities to any person or
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other bodies corporates as per the provisions mentioned in section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73 to
76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there-under. Therefore,
the provisions of para 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us,
maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central
Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the services
provided by the company.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is
regular in depositing and based on our examination of the records of the
company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Goods & Service tax,
Sales Tax, Value added tax, Employee’s State Insurance, duty of excise,
duty of customs, Cess and other material statutory dues, have been
generally regularly deposited during the year by the Company with
appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of income tax, Provident fund, Goods & Service
tax, Sales Tax, Value added tax, Employee's State Insurance, duty of
excise, duty of customs, Cess and other material statutory dues, were in
arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
amounts in respect of Income Tax, Goods & Service tax, Sales tax, Value
added tax, Employee’s State Insurance, duty of excise, duty of Customs,
Cess and Service Tax etc. that have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us,

the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings from any

financial institution or bank or Government or dues to debenture holders..

According to the information and explanations given to us, term loans obtained
during the year applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained by
the company. The company has not raised any money during the year by way
of initial or further public offer
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According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud
by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the year.

According to information and explanation given to us, the company has paid
any managerial remuneration during the year in accordance with the provision
of section 197 read with schedule V of the Companies Act,2013.

As explained, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions
of para 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the
opinion that all related party transaction are in compliance with Section188
and Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable. Necessary
disclosure have been made in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Therefore, the provisions of para 3(xiv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no non-cash
transactions with Directors or persons connected with him have been noticed
or reported during the year as per the provisions of Section 192 of Companies
Act, 2013.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Therefore, the provisions of para 3(xvi) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN 002391C/N500069

PWL'U)( Aj rnwf.\_\ »

Prateek Agrawal

Partner,

Membership # 402826
Signed at Gurugram on May 28, 2020
UDIN 20402826AAAAEN3229
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Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditors Report
[Refer to in our separate report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Berggruen Hotels
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN 002391C/N500069

{)\?\J:CPJ( A’jmzﬁ(\)

Prateek Agrawal

Partner,

Membership # 402826

Signed at Gurugram on May 28, 2020
UDIN 20402826AAAAEN3229




DBerggruen Hotels Privale Limited
Ralance Sheet as ot March 31, 2020

Asat As As
Ll‘lrﬁtulnn Nate errl:..“l‘.k:llm Mlﬂ:lf 31,2009 Apnl Ii::l,'
SSETS ate No. Rs ' Rs in lakhs Rs in
Nen-Current Assels
mp«r:; Plant and Equipment 3A 48.201 56 50,769.44 51,129.65
Npih e1 4 145 9.89 1584
Capatal Work-In-Progress 3B 277 32919 35329
Financial Astets l
U Lose s 9817 2.160.94 128580
{1) Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents i 38874 549.49 37612
{ai1) Other Financaal Assets 12 1017 220,07 2.356.53
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Noa-Current tax Assets (net) 8 63.0 167.91 188 51
Total Nen-Carrent Assels 50,414.56 $5.504 97 57.806.21
Current assely
Inventarres 6 6210 71.65 66.38
Financial Asveis
(i) Loans 5 923 530.82 41010
(1) Trade Recevables 9 2,59491 1,397.64 1,278.44
(i1i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 648.28 1,098.41 . 6187
(iv) Other Financial Assets 12 1861 2.941.97 103.07
Other Current Assets 13 5978 116,46 11352
Total Current Assels 341791 6,158.95 2,585.38
TOTAL ASSETS 53,83247 61,663.92 60,391.59
-
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity i
Equity Share Capual H 5455.16 salyie 526681
Qther Equity HA 2843084 3154151 RAULES
Total equity 33,886.00 36,954.61 37,374.46
Non-Current Liabilitics

Financial Liabihiles . e
(i) Borrowings 16 10388.29 11,749.71 14.539.71
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Long term Provisions 15 102432 146.11
1141261 1189582 1467190

Total Non-Curreat Liabilities

Currenl Liabilities
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(7) Borrowings 16
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Other Financial Liabilitics 1
Other Cusrent Linbilities : ; 1
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 20
Skort lerm provisions 1S
Total Current Liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIADILITIES
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nw.—rmd‘um& i

For Nangia & Ca. LLF
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Berggruen Hotels Private Limited
Statement of Profit and loss account for the year ended March 31,2020

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Particulars Note No.
Rs. in lnkhs Rs. in lakhs
Income
Revenue from operations 21 8,069.03 8,660.78
Other income 22 2,194.96 873.24
9,534.02

10,263.99

Total income (i)

Expenses ;
1,788.30 1,805.90

Cost of food and beverages consumed 23
Employee benefit expenses 24 2,784.05 3,009.03
Depreciation expense 25 1,418.78 1,377.02
Finance Cost 26 2,033.28 2,272.00
Other expenses 27 4,892.00 251143
Total expenses (ii) 12,916.41 10,975.38
Laoss before exceptional items & tax (i-ii) (2,652.42) (1,441.36)
Exceptional items 29 - 596.08
Loss before tax (2,652.42) (2,037.44)
Tax Expenses

Deferred Tax (Credit) 20 (378.10) (547.00)
Total Tax Expense (378.10) (547.00)
Loss for the year (2,274.32) (1,490.44)
Other Comprehensive Loss
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss in subsequent periods

- Re-measurement (losses) on defined benefit plans (93.78) (20.90)

- Income tax effect - -
Other Comprehensive Loss for the year (93.78) (20.90)
Total Comprehensive Loss for the year net of tax (2,308.10) (1,511.34)
Loss per share

Basic 28 (4.23) (2.91)

Diluted 28 {4.23) (2.91)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

ltodl

The accompanying noles form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Bergeruen Hotels Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN 002391 C/NS00069

Prakek Agrual

Prateck Agrawal 2 & M b
Partner 4 Jagdish Kumar Chawla Anshu Sarin
Membership No.: 402826 Director Director
DIN:00003022 DIN: 07101558
3 At
\‘é’ P
Anish Arora ohit Arora
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Date: May 28, 2020 Date: May 28, 2020
Place: New Delhi

Place: Gurugram




Uergeeuen Hotels Private Limiicd

Statement ol changes In equity s at March 31,2020

A. Equity Share Capitel

R la lakhs

Equity sbares of INR 10 cach bssucd, subscribed & Clan A I Tl B | Total

and fully puid Ne. of sharcy Amoust Ne. of shares Amoost No. of shares Amovat

At April 1, 2018

Tsme of equay share capital 50344817 503448 ERTIRIIN FITEL] 52,668,110 526681

At March 31, 2019 14c 90 14629 - - 1.462.930 14629

Comersion of Compultory Comertible Dedentures to S1B07. 147 ENTTER FETIEUR 1.3 54,131,000 sd1Lie

Equuty :m;ﬁ 3,843,000 8430 . " 3843,000 38430

co..m:.rc:-nnucunuq. (1,720,000) (172.00) (1702.983) (170.24) (a12383) (a1

At March 31, 2020 * 630,910 610 1620910} (61.09) - - 3

SLsaT Sassie : : Y] SASIE
B. Qther Equity
Reserve & Surplus
& Complwsary '
Sccuritics Prembum "“"‘:’""“""“ Retulacd Eurmings Cumveriible Jotsl tplt
el Debenlures
Balance as at April 01, 2018 M,
3 _ J 20334 . (6,480.96) 18527 37,107.65

Received Dusing e year 131664 s - 121664

Equity componcs of Complson Comertible 5 . - 127669 1276.69

Debemtures

Profits for the period - . (1490.44) 3 (1490 44)

Adjusencid 0a account of Ind AS . - (1,648.13) - (1,648.13)

Otber comprebeasive Iscome (oct of (a1) . s (20.90) - (20.90)

Balaoce ax at March 31, 2019 J8,519.95 < (9,640.4)] 2,661.96 J1.541.51

Net Movemen duing (he year 157715 MIN - - 1,912.39

Profus for U period . N (121432 - (2.214.3Y)

Roverml of Equity conponcnd on redemption - - - 12.661.96) (2.661.96)

Otber comprehensive income {net of tax) . . (9).78)] . 93.78)

Balance as af Murch 31,2020 40.097.13 ML (11,008.51) - 28,130.84

Sunurary of significani sccounting policics b

A
As per ow repon of oven dole 3
For Nungia & Co. LLP on behalf of ibe Board of Dircctors of
Chartercd Accountseis e Hulcls Pris afe Limited
ICAI FRN 00239 1C/NS0006 s
rr.mﬂs Agpranal Aj \\ ::.% s :::: e
rd N

m i 0 Mo 402826 - DIN 00001022 DIN: 0701538

O

L\ -
S A

Date: May 28, 2020
Place: Gurugaam

‘kv-\l/'

Chicl Funncial Officer

Al
Company Sccrctary
Date: May 28, 2020
Place: New Delhd




Berggruen Hotels Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
A, Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax (2,652.42) (2,037 44)
Non-cash adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:
Exceptional items - 596.08
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 1,418.78 1,377.02
[nterest income (180.59) (820.69)
Income from investment of mutual funds - (0.88)
Interest Costs 2,012.66 2,262.32
Liability written back - (21.89)
Security deposits/CWIP written off 429.18 -
Loss on discard of property,plant and equipment - 5.85
Provision for doubtful debts 1,146.78 7742
Provision for EPCG 937.07 -
Provision for STP 235.00 -
Operating profit before working capital changes: 3,346.46 1,437.79
Movements in working capital:
Movement in financial assets and current assets (2,393.16) (221.73)
Movement in inventories 4.55 (527)
Movement in financial liabilities and provisions 420.19 132.06
Cash Generated from Operations 1,378.04 1,342.85
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (265.31) (179.40)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 1,112.73 1.163.45
B. Cash flows used in investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (34.04) (59.73)
Purchase of current investments - (300.00)
Sale of current investments - 300.88
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment 1,175.00 0.75
(Increase) / decrease in other bank balances 160.75 (173.37)
Loans received back/granted 2,891.83 (31.00)
Interest received 3,013.76 65.59
Net Cash flow used in investing activities (B) 7,207.30 (196.88)
C Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital - 1,462 .93
Repayment on account of Buy back of shares (1,833.65) -
Repayment of long term borrowings (3,115.14) (95.82)
Interest paid (3,821.37) (1,849.14)
Net Cash from financing activities (C) (8,770.16) (482.03)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (450.13) 484 .54
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 1,098.41 613.87

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 648.28 1,098 41




Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 314 e

Balances with banks in

Current accounts 465.17 1017.54

On deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 monihis of less) 179.97 m
548.28 IOQBA 1

Total cash and cosh equivalents ( refer note 10)

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial slatements
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Berggruen Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1. Corporate Information

Berggruen Hotels Private Limited (the Company) is a private company domiciled in India and
is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered
office of the company is located at602, Central Plaza, 6™ Floor, 166, C.S.T. Road, Kalina,
Santacruz (West) Mumbai- 400098,

The principal activities of the Company is to carry out business of developing, owning,
acquiring, renovating and promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, etc.

The financial statemenis were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on 28" May 2020.

2 Basis of preparation
2.1 Significant accounting policies

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016.

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company prepared its
financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 (Indian GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 are the
first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Refer to note 35 for information
on how the Company adopted Ind AS.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost
convention and on an accrual methed of accounting, except for certain financial assets and
tiabilities which are measured at fair value/ amortised cost.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded
upto two decimal places to the nearest lakhs, expect where otherwise indicated.

22 Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the bafance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months afler the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to scttle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:
e ltis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
o It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
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o It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
o There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their

realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

(b) Foreign currencies

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition, However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencics are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss ;

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions, Non-monetary jtems
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,
respectively).

(c) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each
balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
o In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best inferest.
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

* Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

¢ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair
value. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The
management selects external valuer on various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained by valuer. The management
decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques and

inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting
policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other

relevant documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the
change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine

whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level

of the fair value hierarchy.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are

given in the relevant notes.

* Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 30)

e Contingent consideration (note 30)
* Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 34)
e Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 33)
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(d) Revenue recognition

The Company earns revenue primarily from the business of carrying developing, owning,
acquiring, renovating and promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, ete. under the brand
of Lemon Tree Premier.

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company had applied Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” which establishes a comprehensive framework to depict timing and amount of
revenue to be recognised. The Company had adopted Ind AS 115 using cumulative catch-up
transition method, where any effect arising upon application of this standard is recognised as
at the date of initial application (i.e April I, 2018). The standard is applied only to contracts
that are not completed as at the date of initial application.

In arrangements for room revenue and related services, the Company has applied the guidance
in Ind AS 115 for recognition of Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the
revenue recognition criteria for each distinct performance obligation. The arrangements with
customers generally meet the criteria for considering room revenue and related services as
distinct performance obligations, For allocating the transaction price, the Company has
measured the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its relative
standalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is
the best evidence of its standalone selling price.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The
Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting
as principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its
revenue arrangements. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met
before revenue is recognized.

Sales tax/ value added tax (VAT)/Goods & Service Tax(GST) is not received by the
Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commedity by
the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Rooms, Restawrant, Banquets and Other Services

Tncome from guest accommodation is recognized on a day to day basis after the guest checks
into the Hotels and are stated net of allowances. Incomes from other services are recognized
as and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Service Tax, Value Added
Taxes (VAT), Goods and Service tax and Luxury Tax. Difference of revenue over the billed
as at the year-end is carried in financial statement as unbilled revenue separately.

. Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, sale of food and beverage are recognized at
the points of serving these items to the guests. Sales are stated exclusive of Sales Tax /

VAT/Goods and Service Tax.
Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest
income is included in finance income in the income statement.
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(e)

Taxes
Current income fax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those fhat are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations arc subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can

be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Sales/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assels or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes paid, except:
o When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition

of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable
o When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as
part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
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(®

(2)

Property, plant and equipment

The Company has elected to measure the property. plant and equipment at the date of transition to Ind
ASs at its fair value and use that fair value as its deemed cost at that date.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed. its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if
the recognition criteria are satistied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the
cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per Revised Schedule I11 of Companies Act. 2013 on Straight
Line Method over its economic useful life of fixed assets as follows:

Fixed Assets Useful life considered

(SLM)
Building 60 Years
Plant & Machinery 15 Year
Electrical fittings 10 Years
Electrical Equipment 10 Years
Office Equipments 5 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 8 Years
Vehicles 6 Years
Computers 3 Years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values. useful lives and methods of depreciation of property. plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

Intangible assets

The Company has elected to measure the Intangible Assets at the date of transition to Ind ASs at its fair
value and use that fair value as its deemed cost at that date.
(See Note 39)

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the
related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as 3 years and the same shall be amortised on Straight
line basis over its useful life.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually
cither individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not. the change in useful
life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible assct are measured as the difference between
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®

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Leases

As per IND AS 116 applicable w.e.f. April 1, 2019

The Company assesses that the contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether:

(1) The contract invelves the use of an identified asset,

(2) The Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset, and

(3) The Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

Company as a lessec

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset
for the lease term at the lease commencement date, The cost of the right-of-use asset measured
at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial
direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated from the
commencement date over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.
Right-of-use assels are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments over the
lease term. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company
uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the
Company adopts the incremental borrowing rate for the entire portfolio of leases as a whole,
The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, exercise price of a
purchase option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease. The lease liability is
subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-
substance fixed lease payments.

The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company
recognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these low value leases
are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals under operating
leases are recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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() Inventories

Stock of food & beverages, stores and operating supplies are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable Valve. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a first in first out
basis.Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make sale.

(k) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair valueless costs of
disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or Company of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount, In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a fong-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the
most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the produets, industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’'sCGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the i
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase,

(1) Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
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(m)

amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some oF all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and lfoss net of any reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the tiability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recoghizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. Gratuity liability of
employees is accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method
at the close of the year. Company’s contribution made to Life Insurance Corporation is
expenses off at the time of payment of premiu.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not’
veclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
s The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset, The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as
an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
o Net interest expense or income

The company treats leaves expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The company presents the entirc leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an uncenditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional
legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liability.
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(n)

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Conipany commits
to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following

categories:

e Debt instruments at amortised cost

o Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

o Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

o Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (EVTOCI)

» Equity instruments in subsidiaries carried at cost

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a)  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral past of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables
etc.

Debt instrument al FYTOC!

A debt instrument is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income,
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
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reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument
is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCT, is classified as at FVTPL,

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.

Equity instruments

All equity investments (other than equity investments in subsidiaries) in scope of Ind AS 109
are measured at fair value. Equity instruments in subsidiaries are carried at cost in separate
financial statements less impairments if any. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL
category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet) when:

o The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

o The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assefs

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit

risk exposure:

a) Financial assels that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at EVTOCI

¢) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables ;

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at gach

reporting date, right from its initial recognition.




Berggruen Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2020

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If,
in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

s TFinancial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

e Debt instruments measured at FVTOCT: Since financial assets are already reflected at
fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL
amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCL

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI)
financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/
origination.

Financial tiabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:




Berggruen Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss,

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and
loss.

Loang and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 17.
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(0) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
ferm deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value,
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Derggruen Holels Privale Limitad
Notes forming part of the Finnncial Statenieats lor the year ended Murch 31, 2020

Loans
Particulars Noa current Current
Asat Asat Asal Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 Aprif 1,2018 March 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 2019 April 1,2018
Rs. in lakhs Rs_in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs, in Inkhs Ra. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated ut
amastised cost
Securily deposiis §95.17 37182 424.68 854 421.82 368.04
Luans to Related parties - 278312 2,861.12 0.29 109.00 2.06
Total 695.17 3,160.94 3,285.80 9.23 530.82 41040
Inveatorics
Particulars Asat Asat Agat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in Iakhs
- Foad & Beverages 28.36 37.93 3359
- Linen & Kitchen Supplies 29.26 23.62 2291
- Fuel & Engincering 9.48 10.10 9.58
Tatal 67.10 71.65 66.38
Other Non-current Assels
Particulars As at Asat As at
AMarch 31, 2020 Match 31, 2019 April £, 2018
Rs. in lukhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in Iakhs
Prepaid expenses 10.31 17.50 10.16
Balances with Goverameat Authorities 166.91 424 -
Capital Advances - - 18.060
Advances other than apitat advances 84.24 7230 7229
Total 261,46 98.04 £00.45
Non-Current fax nssel
Parficulars As al Asat Asal
March 3i, 2020 March 31, 2019 April [,2018
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Advance Income Tax (Net of provision for laxation) 633.23 367.91 188.51
Tatal 633.23 367.91 188.51
Trade receivables
Asat As al Asat

Particulars

Unsecured, considered good
Total

Aurch 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

April 1, 2018

No Irade or other receivable are due from directors or othes officers either severally or jointly with any other person

Cush ond cash equivalents
Particulars

Balances with banks

On curcent accounls

On deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 montbs or less)*
Cash in hand
Totnl

* Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of belween one day and three months and carn :nterest at the respective short

Dauk balauces other than cash and cash equivatenls
Particulars

Fixed Deposits with Banks ( Maturity more than twebve months)
Tolak

s, jn lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in bakhs
2,594.91 1,397.64 1,278.44
2,50491 1,397.64 1,278.44

Asal As at Asal
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1,208
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
46517 1,017.54 35087
179.97 72.01 256.48
3.4 8.86 6.52
48,28 1,098.41 613.87
-term deposil rates
As al As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 3L, 2019 April 1,2018
Rs. in lakbhs Rs. in lakhis Rs. in lakiis
38874 549.49 ] 376.12
388.74 549.49 376,12




Berggrien Hotels Privale Limited
Notes forming part of the Finnncinl Slatements fos the year ended March 31, 2020

Other finuncinl assels
Particulars Non current Current
As at Asat As at Asat Asal Asal
Murch 31, 2020 March 31,2019 Apdl 1, 2018 March 34, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1,2018
Is, in Inkhs Rs. in lakhs Its. in Jakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Interest accrued on fixed deposils and other deposits 230.17 22007 202.30 38.61 4038 16.68
Interesl acerued on loans to related party - - 2,154.25 - 2,841.50 24.30
Foans and advances to other parties** = - = - 62.09 62.09
Total 230.17 22007 2,356.55 38.61 2,943.97 103.07
¢ Includes Loans amounting to Rs. Nil as on March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 Rs 62.00 and Apeil 01, 2018 given to ex-employees of the Company i eaclier years
Other Corrent Assels
Partieulars Asat As at Asat
March 31,2020 March 31,2018 April 1,2018
Rs. in lokhs Rs. in lnkhs Rs. in lakhs
Prepaid expenses 52,90 75.86 66.38
Advauce to Suppliers 6,37 1757 15.80
Acdlvance to Employces 0.51 0.77 1.25
Balances with government autharities - 9.1l 2321
Advances other than capital advances - 13.15 6.82
“Total 59.78 116.46 113.52

(This spave has been intentionally teft blank)




Berggruen Hotels Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Equity share capital
Particulars

Authorised
Class A-Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
Class B-Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued
Class A-Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
Class B-Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount

Class A- Equity Shares
At the beginning of the year
Add: Conversion of CCD to Equity shares

Add: Conversion of Class B to Class A Equity shares

Less: Shares Bought back during the year
Add: Shares issued during the year

Qutstanding at the end of the of the year

Class B- Equity Shares
At the beginning of the year
Less : shares bought back during the year
Less : Conversion to Class A
OQutstanding at the end of the of the year

(b) Shares held by holding company

Class A Equity Shares
Berggruen Investments Mauritius
Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Class B Equity Shares
Berggruen Investments Mauritius

(¢) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of in the Company

Name of the Shareholder

Class A Equity Shares
Berggruen Investments Mauritius
Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Class B Equity Shares
Berggruen Investments Mauritius
Arif Khan

Alex Joshi

(d) Terms/rights attached to equity shares :

As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
No. of Shares Rs. in lakhs No. of Shares Rs. in lakhs No. of Shares Rs. in lakhs
58,300,000 5,830.00 $5,500,000 5,550.00 55,500,000 5.550.00
- - 2,800,000 280.00 2.800,000 280.00
58,300,000 5,830.00 58,300,000 5.830.00 58,300,000 5,830.00
53,551,657 5,455.16 51,807,747 5.180.77 50,344,817 5,034.48
= = 2,323,293 232.33 2,323,293 232.33
53,551,657 5,455.16 54,131,040 5.413.10 52,668,110 5.266.81
Asat As at Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
No. of Shares Rs. in lakhs No. of Shares Rs. in lakhs No. of Shares Rs. in lakhs
51,807,747 5,180.77 50,344.817 5.034.48 49,064,077 4.906.41
3.843,000 384.30 - - - -
620,910 62.09 - - - -
(1,720,000) (172.00) - - - -
- - 1.462,930 146.29 1,280,740 128.07
54,551,657 5,455.16 51.807,747 5,180.77 50,344,817 5,034.48
2,323,293 232.33 2,323,293 232.33 2,323,293 23233
(1,702,383) (170.24) - - - -
(620,910} (62.09) - - 3 ]
= - 2,323,293 23233 2,323,293 232.33
As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
No. of Shares Rs. in lakhs No. of Shares Rs. in lakhs  No. of Shares Rs. in lakhs
- - 51,807,746 5,180.77 50,344,816 503448
54.551.616 5,455.16 - - 5 i
- - 1,702,383 170.24 1,702,383 170.24
As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
No. of shares % holding in the N Ehres hetd % holding in the  No. of shares % holding in
held class class held the class
= - 51.807.746 99.99% 50.344.816 99.99%
54,551,616 100.00% - = - -
- - 1,702,383 73.27% 1,702,383 73.27%
- - 310,455 13.36% 310,455 13.36%
- - 310455 13.36% 310,455 13.36%

The Company had two class of equity shares (Class A and Class B) having a par value of Rs. 10 each. During the year ended March 31, 2020, out of the 23,23,293 Class B shares existing as on
March 31, 2019 the Company has bought back 17,02.383 and converted 6,20,910 Class B equity shares to Class A Equity shares. 23.23 lakhs Class B Equity Shares were issued and allotted on 8
May 2012, to certain employees of the Company pursuant to Share Subscription and Share Holders Agreement (herein after refer to 'SSSHA') entered between the Company, its promoters and the
said employees. Class B Equity shares were not entitled to voting or dividend rights. As on March 31, 2020, the Company has only one class of Equity shares i.e Class A of Equity shares. Each

holder of Class A equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

Aggregate number of bonus share issued, share issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date

Equity shares bought back (Class A)
Equity shares bought back (Class B)

March 31, 2020
No. of shares

March 31, 2019
No. of shares

1,720,000
1,702,383
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Berggruen Hotels Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Finoncinl Sintements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Other Equity

Parficulurs Asal As al As at
_wrth 31,2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
Securitics premium (A)
Balance at the lasl Balance Sheet 38,519,938 37,203.34 37,203.34
Add: Sccurify Premium on Conversion of CCD 3,410.80 - -
Less: Security premium utilised on buy back of shares {1,491.43) - -
Less: Nominal Value of Shares bought back transferred (342.24) - -
from Security premium to capital redemption reserve
Add: Received during the year - 1,316.64 -
Closing Befance 40,697.13 38,519.98 37,203.34
Capital Redemption Reserve (B)

Balance al the beginniny of the year - - -
Add: Neminal Value of Shares bought back transferred 342,24 - -
from Security premitim to capital vedemption rescrve
Clusing Balunce 342.24 - -
Retnined Enrnings  (C)

Balance at the beginning of the year (9,640.43) (6,480.96} 23,578.71)
Revaluation of PPE - - 20,067.09
Adjustmenls on account of Indt AS 116 - {1,648.13) -
Net Profit for the year (2,274.32) {1,490.44) -
Creation of deferred tax Liabilily - - (2.969.34)
Re-measuremenl gain on defined benefit plans (net of {axes){ltems of OCI} (93.78) (20.90) -
Closing Balance (12,008.53) (9,64043) (6,480.96)
Equity Componenl of Campulsory Converfible Debentures (D)

Balance at the last Balance Sheel 2,661,96 1,385.27 .

Add: Equity component of Campulsory Convertible Debentures - 1,276.69 1,385.27
Less: Reversal of Equily component at redemption (2,661.96) - -
Closing Balance - 2,661.96 1,385.27
Talol (A+B+C+D) 28,430.84 31,541.51 32,107.65

Securities promium: Securities premium comprises premium receives on issuc of shares.
Capilal Redemption Reserve ; Capital redemplion reserve comprises the amount of shares bought back.
Retained Earnings : Deficitin the statement of Profit and Loss camprise balances of profit and loss at each periodiyear ead.

(This space has been imtentionally lefl biank)
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Berggrucn Hotels Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Provisions

Particulars

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 27)
Leave bencfits

EPCQG liability - Principal

EPCG liability - Interest

STP kinbility

Total

Borrowings

Particulars

Term Loan from Tourism Finance Corporation

Term foan from Yes Bank
Compulsory Convertible Debentures
Credit facility from bank

Loans from Refated Party

Total

Non-Current Current
Asat As at Asat Asat Asat Asat
narch 31, 2020 March 31,2019 April 1,2018 March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 April 1,2018
. Rs, in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. inlakbs Rs. in takhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
£2.25 51.71 51.75 16.54 16.39 11.28
- 94.40 80.44 34.10 64.73 49.14
384,00 - - - - -
533.07 - - - - -
75,00 - - 160.00 - =
1,024.32 146.11 132.19 210.64 81.12 60.42
Non-Current Current
Asat Asat Asat As ut As at Asat
March 31,2020 March 31,2019 April 1,2018 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1,2018
Rs, in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in Inlds Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
720,00 720.00 960.00 - 240.00 240.00
9,668,29 9,896.57 12,446.57 2,550.00 2,013.5¢
= 133,14 1,133.14 - = G
- - - 1,315.85 [,469.71 588.72
- - - 57.00 - -
10,388.29 11,749.71 14,539.71 1,372.85 4,259.71 2,842.22

Nature of security and teris of repayments for long term Borvowings

Term loan from Yes Bank of Rs. 2386.76 Lakhs (Previous yeas Rs. 2870,32 Lakhs) carrics inferest rate of 1.85
repayabie in 36 quarterly installments from the date of lonn after a moratoriwm
the entire project land at Cochin along with structures buil
secured by way of pledge of 30% sharcholding of the Company held by

Term loan from bank of Rs.7281.53 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 9576.25 Lakhs) carries interest 1

above, Rs.6107.83 Lakhs (Previous year Rs.8086.81 Lakhs)

period of 30 months as per the rep
{ thereon and afl movable fixed assets and curcent assels (botl present and future) of the Cochiil
the holding company and corperale guarantee of Fleur Hotels Private Limited.

iss repayable in 40 quarterly installments from

% p.a. ("Spread") payable monthly, linked to one year MCLR, and is
ayment schedule. The loan is secured by way of exclusive charge on -

n fietel. Further, lhe loan is

ate of 1.85% p.a. ("Spread”} payable monthly, linked to one year MCLR. Out of the

the date of the loan and the balance is repayable in 32 quarterly installments

from the date of loan afer a moratorium period of 24 months, The above loans are secured by exclusive charge on all movable fixed assets and current assets (both future and
present) of the Company excepl Vizag Hotel and charge on owned/freehotd properties and structure in respect of leaschold fand for operational hotels (excluding Vizag) and
extension of charge over Cothin project. Further, the loan is secured by way of pledge of 30% shareholding of the Company held by the helding company and corporate guarantee of
Fleur Hotels Private Limited.

Term loan from financial institution of Rs. 720.00 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 960, 00 Lakhs) carries inferest not exceeding 11.8% p.a. and is repayable in 30 equal quarterly installment
after 15 October, 2015. The loau is secured by first charge and equitable mortgage of leaschold fand situated at Vizag and first charge by way of hypothecation of movable assets
subject ta prior charge of the bank on specified movable assets for securing working capilal facility and further pledge of 15,45,000 equity shares of the Company held by the holding
company and corporate guarantee of Fleur Hotels Private Limited.

Credit facility from Bank carries intercst rate 0£2.05% p.a. ("Spread") payable monthly, linked to six months MCLR and is secured by way of exclusive charge on movable fixed
assets. The said facility is secured by way of exclusive charge on-the entire project land at Cochin afong with structuses built thereon and il movable fixed assets and current assels
(both present and future) of the Cochin hotel, Further, the loan is sceured by way of pledge of 30% shareholding of the Company held by the holding company and corporate

puarantee of Fleur Hotels Private Limited.

Trade payables Cureent
Asut Asat Asal
Particulars March 34, 2020 March 31,2019 April 1,2018
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. inlakhs

Trade payables

-tolal outstanding dues of micro entecprises and small enterprises i

-totol cutstaading dues of ereditors other than micro and small enterprises 748.49 210.98 110.90
Total 748,49 21098 110.90

* Trade payables are nou-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.
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Current
As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Creditors for expenses® 3,429.69 3,575.75 507.75
Interest acrued 116.53 1,925.24 1.512.06
Total 3,546.22 5,500.99 201981
*Lease Liabilty included in creditors for expenses
Particular Rs. in lakhs
Balance as at April 01, 2019 3,092.96
Additions during the vear -
Deletion during the year -
Interest accrued during the year 320.70
Payment of lease liabilities 396.90
Balance as at March 31, 2020 3,016.76
Current 3,016.76
Non-Current -
Other current Liabilities
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 Aprl 1,2018
Rs, in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Capital creditors 39.87 53.65 79.17
Statutory dues 510.70 242.65 223.57
Advance from Customers 60.86 42.05 39.80
Total 611.43 338.35 342.54
Deferred Tax Liability
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1,2018
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Property Plant & Equipment 6,866.78 8,314.47 8.206.54
Deferred tax liabilities 6,866,78 8,314.47 8,206.54
Effect of Unabsorbed depreciation 4,822.55 5,892.13 523720
Deferred tax asset 4,822.55 5,892.13 5,237.20
Deferred tax liability, Net 2,044.23 2.422.34 2.969.34
Total 2,044.23 242234 2,969.34
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Nofes forming pact of the Finnncial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020

Revenie rom operations

Kevenue from operations
Sale of products and services
Rooms & Banguel Rentals
Faod and Beverages
Service Charge Incoma
Other Services
Manegement Fees
Service Charges/ ( Keys Lite Fees)
Total

Other income

Exchange Gain (net}
Sale of Brand
Sale of Managed Contracis
Liabilities writlen back
Miscellancous Incame
Interest incame on Bank Deposils
Interest income on others
Sale of scrap
Income fram invesiment of mutval funds
Total

Cost of matesiol consumed

{a) Consumption of food & beverages

Tnventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchascs

Less: Invenlory at the end of the year
Cost of foodl and beverage consumed

(b) Consemplion of stores & supplies
Inventary at the beginniug of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: Inventocy at the end of ho year
Cosl of stores and supplies consumed

{c) Cosumption of Power, fuel & waler charges

Inventary 2t the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: Inventory at the cnd of the year
Cost of Power, Fuel & Water charges consumed

Tolal cost of material consumed

Employee beneflifs expense

For the year ended
March 31,2020

For tho year ended
March 31,2019

Ra. in laklis Ra in Inkhs
5,802.00 6,138.03
1,760.61 1,838.85

13242 -
60.82 75.60
310.98 608.30
2.23 2
4,069.03 8,660.748

For the year ended
March 31,2024

For lhe year ended
March 31,2019

Re. in lnkhis Rs. in fakhs

0.09 2.96
100,00 -
1,900,00 -
- 21.89
13.04 4.5
60.65 65.88
119,94 754.81
1.24 231
- 0.88
2,194.9¢ 373.24

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Rs, in lokhs Rs. in lakhs
37.93 33.59
648.19 657.74
28.36. 37.93
657.76 653.40
23,62 2291
265.64 29060
29.26 23.62
260.00 289.89
19.10 9.88
869,92 862,83
9.48 10.10
87054 862.61
1,788.30 1,805.90

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2020 Macch 31,2019
Rs. (n Inkhs Rs. in lakbs
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 2,486.04 2.462.06
Payment o outsotirced stafl’ 21584 21425
Conteibution fo Provident and other Punds 153.54 143.36
Gratuity expense (refer note 29} (103.98) 2033
Leave Encashmeat (75.61) 52.87
Staff wellare expenses 108.22 116.16
Total 2,784.08 3,00903
Depreciation expense
For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31,2020 March 31,2019
s, la lakhs Rs. in takhs
Deprecintion on propery, plaot and equipment's (rzles note 3) 1,418.78 1,372.02
1,377.02

Tofal

1,418.78

(Tihis space Jas been imentionatly lefi Blank)
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Berggruen Hotels Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Finance Cost

For the year ended
March 31,2020

For the year ended
March 31,2019

Rs. in lakhs Rs. n lakhs
Interest - on borrowings 2,012.66 226232
Bank and other financial charges 20.62 G 68
Total 2.033.28 2:272.00

Other expenses

For the year ended
March 31,2020

For the vear ended
March 31,2019

Rs. in lakhs Rs. m lakhs

Rent 23.76 395.29
Printing & stationary 0.95 320
Advertisement & Sales Promotion 235.15 215.79
Travelling and conveyance 209.56 288.66
Communication expenses 113.22 13853
Legal and professional fees 159.32 22548
Payment to auditor (Refer Note A below) 10.00 18.00
Repairs & maintenance

Building 39.97 42.52

Equipment 179.54 181.53

Others 57.09 60.06
Prowision for doubful debts 1,146.78 7742
Security deposits written off 100.00 -
CWIP written off 329,18 -
Insurance 30.25 2943
Management fees 157.48 -
Commission expenses 450.55 489.07
Rates and taxes 1,575.09 286.10
Miscellaneous expenses 70.11 60 33
Total +4.892.00 2.511.43

Note A: Payments to the auditors (excluding service tax/GST)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31,2020

For the year ended
March 31,2019

Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
As auditors:
Statutory audit 10,00 13 00
Total 10,00 18.00

(Loss)/Earnings per share

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted compurations:

For the year ended
March 31,2020

For the year ended
March 31,2019

Particulars Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
(Loss)/Profit after tax (2,274.32) (1,490 44)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding (Nos.) 33,776,839 51.271.,983

Basic/Diluted Loss per share (nominal value of shares Rs. 10 each;

March 31, 2019 Rs. 10 each)

Exceptional items

(4.23)

(2.91)

As at 31 March 2019, certain loans / nterest recenvable and advances given against land amounting to Rs 110.74 lacs were considered
doubtful of recovery. Accordingly, the Company provided Rs. 110.74 lacs during the year ended 31 March 2019 and the same 1s
disclosed as exceptional item.

The Company sold freehold land situated at Goa and Raipur at a loss of Rs. 439,30 lacs in the year 2019-20. In view of abave, the
carrying value of these freehold land as at 31 March 2019 were considered impaired. Accordingly, the Company provided for impairment
of Rs. 439.30 lacs pertaing to above freehold land and also written off related preoperative expenses of Rs. 25.83 lacs in the Statement of
profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2019 and disclosed under exceptional item.

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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30.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, eXpenses, assets and
liabilities, the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these judgements, estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis and the revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period
in which the estimate is revised.

Valuation of Property Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets:
The Company has elected to use fair value as deemed cost on the date of Transition to Ind AS for

Property Plant & Equipment

Estimation of Uncertainties related to global health pandemic on COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic is affecting major economic and financial markets, and virtually all
industries and governments are facing challenges associated with the economic conditions resulting
from efforts to address it. As the spread of the pandemic increased, entities are experiencing
conditions often associated with a general economic downturn. In many countries, there has been
severe disruption in regular business operations due to lockdown, travel bans, quarantines and other
emergency measures. Currently there is a particularly high degree of uncertainty about the ultimate
trajectory of the pandemic and the path and time needed for a return to a “steady state” The
continuation of these circumstances could have a prolonged negative impact on the financial
condition and results of operations.

For the year ended March 31, 2020. the Company has considered possible effects due to COVID 19 in
its assessment of the going concern assumption and liquidity position for the next one year,
recoverability of assets comprising Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE), trade receivables and
investment in subsidiaries and associates (investments) as at the balance sheet date.

The Management have assessed the offect of these macro-economic conditions into their estimates of
future cash flows to make good-faith estimates for determining the values of the Company’s assets
including investments and liabilities. The Management has carefully considered these unique
circumstances and risk exposures when analyzing how recent events may affect their financial
reporting to develop estimates considering all available refevant information.

Specifically for investments, the Management has considered the following in its evaluation:

® The industry in which the investee entity operates

e The geographic location of the investee entity

° The size of the investee entity

o The quantitative significance of the investee entity

° Other factors specific to the investee entity

° Liquidity risk premiums

° Appropriateness of valuation technigues and inputs used including current market assessment of
credit risk and liquidity risk.

While assessing the recoverable amount of PPE and investments, the Company has used significant
assumptions such as hotel occupancy rates, average room rate per hotel, terminal growth rate and
weighted average cost of capital. For assessing the recoverable amount of trade receivables, the
Company has calculated the expected credit loss from the debtors considering amount to be realized
from them in future after factoring the impact on credit risk due to COVID 19.
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Management has also taken various cost savings initiatives during the months of April and May 2020,
which will have a positive impact going forward.Management believes that the easing of lockdown in
India including domestic flight operations and expected increase in business travel would be
beneficial for the Company.

Management believes that it has taken into account the possible impact of known events arising from
COVID 19 pandemic in the preparation of theses financial statements. The associated economic
impact of the pandemic is highly dependent on variables that are difficult to predict including the
degree to which governments may further restrict business and other activities. The impact assessment
of COVID 19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration
and actual results may differ materially from these estimates. The Company will continue to monitor
any material changes to future economic conditions and any significant impact of these changes
would be recognized in the financial statements as and when these material changes to gcanomic
conditions arise. The management believes that it will not have negative impact on future cash flows
and the financial position of the Company.

Based on a collective assessment of the above factors management believes that the Company will
continue as a going concern for the next one year, has enough liquidity to meet its obligations and
based on fair value assessment will be able to recover the carrying amount of its assets as on March

31, 2020.
Critical judgements, estimates and assumptions
I.  Impairment of preperty, plant and equipment

Each hotel property is an identifiable asset that generates cash inflows and is independent of the cash
inflows of the other hotel propertics, hence identified as cash generating units. The Company assesses
the carrying amount of hotel properties (CGU) to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. Where the carrying amount of CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss (if any) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

While assessing the recoverable amount, the Company used the discounted cash flow approach
including various significant estimates and assumptions such as forecast of future revenue, operating
margins, growth rate and selection of the discount rates. The key assumptions used for the

calculations are as follows:

Particulars As at March 31,2020

Discount Rate (pre tax rate of WACC) 12.50%
Long Term Growth Rate 5.50%

As at March 31, 2020, the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying amount
and the change in estimated future economic conditions on account of possible effects relating to
COVID-19 is unlikely to cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU.

2. Leases

The Company has taken certain land and land & building on long term lease basis. The lease
agreements generally have an escalation clause and are generally non-cancellable. In assessing
whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise
an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the
option to terminate the lease. The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per
the requirements of IND AS 116. Identification of a lease requires judgment. The Company uses
judgement in assessing the lease term and the applicable discount rate. The discount rate is generally
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based on the incremental borrowing rate.

3. Loss Allowance on trade receivables

An impairment analysis of trade receivables is performed at each reporting period based on the
Company’s history of collections, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as
forward fooking estimates. In calculating expected credit loss, the Company has also considered the
likelihood of consequential default considering emerging situations due to COVID-19 and has taken
into account estimates of possible effect from the pandemic relating to COVID-19. Basis this
assessment, the allowance for doubtful trade receivables as at March 31, 2020 is considered adequate.
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31. Gratuity and other posi-employment benefit plans
Rs in lakhs

March 31,2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018

Present value of defined benefit obligation 28.79 68.10 63.03
Total 28.79 68.10 63.03

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to
specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s fength of service and
salary at retirement age. The Company makes provision of such gratuity asset/ liability in the
books of accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation as per the Projected unit eredit method.
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The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:

Mzr;;'osl’ x‘;';h A April 1, 2018
Unquoted investments:
Asset invested in insurance scheme with the LIC 100% 100% 100%
Tatal 100% 100% 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

March 31,2019 April 1, 2018

March 31, 2020
Discount rafe: Yo
Pension plan 5.47%
Future salary increases:
Pension plan 5.00%
Life expectation for pensioners at the age of 65; Years
Pension plan
Male 60
Female 60

%

6.94%

8.00%

Years

60
60

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2020 is as shown below:

India gratuity plan:

%

7.30%

8.00%

Years

60
60

Rs in lalkhs
March 31, March 31, March 31, Mareh 31,
2020 2020 2020 2020
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit
0.80 (0.86) 0.85 (0.80)

obligation
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March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2019 2019 2019 2019
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit
1.42 (1.59) 1.57 (1.43)

obligation

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined
benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Rs in lakhs
Duration (Years) For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1 16.55 16.39
2 15.92 17.68
3 15.04 19.48
4 11.82 19.28
5 9.90 18.30
Above 5 24.51 69.07
Total expected payments 93.74 160.20

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 2.77 years (March
31, 2019: 2.77 years).
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32. Commitments and contingencies

a. Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:

At March 31, 2020, the Company had NIL commitments (March 31, 2019: Rs143.19 lakhs, April 1, 2018: Rs

NIL)

b. Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

Rs in lakhs
As af March | Asat March | Asat April |,
31,2020 31,2019 2018

2. |Counter guarantees issued in respect of guarantees issued by

company’s bankers 516.92 587.81 614.04
b. |Custom duty on pending export obligation 33741 404.58 491.48
¢. Legal claim confingency

i) The Company has entered into a lease agreement in April, 2008 with the land owners of the Baroda

property to construct a hotel in the said property pursuant to whichsum of Rs. 100 Lakhs has been paid
to the property owners as refundable security deposit. As per the Lease agreement, on execution of the
said Lease Deed, owners were obliged to deliver to the Company, vacant and peaceful possession of
the said property and to demolish existing structure standing thereon in order to enable the Company
to construct the proposed hotel on the said property. More than five years have elapsed since execution
of the said Lease Deed and despite various assurances and promises, the owners have failed to hand
over possession of the said property and hence the Company terminated the lease agreement and asked
immediately to refund the refundable security deposit alongwith interest at the rate of 25% per annum.
Subsequent to termination of the lease agreement, the Company has also filed the case against owners
for recovery of monies paid to them alongwith the interest. The Company expects the judgment in its

favour,
d. Leases

Transition to Ind AS 116

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all Lease contracts
existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the cumulative adjustment to
retained earnings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the
present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset at its
carrying amount as if the standard has been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at
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the Company’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at March 31, 2019
and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be
reported under the accounting policies included in the audited financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2019

Company as a lessee:

For transition, the Company has assessed whether the contract is, or contains, the lease. The Company has

elected not to apply the requirements of IND AS 116 to leases for which the undertying asset is of low value on a
lease-by-lease basis and the leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application. The
Company has used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics, The Company has
applied its incremental borrowing rate for lease liabilities recognised in the balance sheet at the date of initial

application.
The weighted average of incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities, as at April 01,2019 is 10.75%.

On transition, the Company recognised a lease liability measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments as at April 1, 2019. The right-of-use asset is recognised at its carrying amount as if the standard had been
applied since the commencement of the lease, but discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as at
April 1, 2019, Accordingly, a right-of-use asset of Rs. 1,444.83lakhs and a corresponding lease liability of
Rs.3,092.961akhshas been recognized. The cumulative effect on transition in retained earnings net of taxes is Rs.
1648.13 takhs (including a deferred tax of Rs.Nil). On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of expenses has
changed from lease rent in previous periods to depreciation cost for the right-of-use asset, and finance cost for
interest accrued on lease liability.

The impact of Ind AS 116 as at 1st April 2019 on the balance sheet line items is as follows:

Particulars As at April 1,2019 Ind AS 116 As at April 1,
(Before Ind AS 116) | Adjustments 2019 (post Ind
AS 116)
Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Right of use assets “ 1,444.83 {,444.83
Deferred tax assets (net) - - -

Total Assets - 1,444.83 1,444.83
Equity and Liabilities

Other Equity - (1,648.13) (1,648.13)
Non-Current

Financial fiabilities
Lease Liabilities - 3,092.96 3,092.96

Current
Financial liabilities
Lease Liabilities - - . =

Total Equity and Liabilitics - 1,444.83 1,444.83
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33. Related Party Transactions

a) Names of related parties where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have

occurred or not,

Ultimate Holding company

Holding Company

Fellow subsidiary companies/LLP

Other Related Parties with whom transactions
have taken place during the year or balances is
outstanding during the year

Key Management Personnel

-Lemon Tree Hotels Limited (from November 1, 2019)
- Berggruen Investments Mauritius (upto October 31, 2019)

-Fleur Hotels Private Limited(from November 1, 2019)

-Berggruen [nvestments, Mauritius (upto October 31, 2019)

- UEI Global Education Private Limited (upto October 31, 2019)
- Madhukrish Affability Private Limited (Keys Hospitality
Private Limited) (upto October 31, 2019)

Carnation Hotels Private Limited (from November 15, 2019)

- Berggruen Car Rentals Private Limited ( upto October 31,

2019)
- BH Advisors Private Limited ( upto October 31, 2019)

BHI Capital Advisors Private Limited ( upto October 31,
2019)

Berggruen Properties Private Limited ( upto October 31,
2019)

IMS Benelux Holdings Cooperative UA ( upte October 31,
2019)

Berggruen Realtics Private Limited ( upto October 31, 2019)
Berggruen Developers Private Limited ( upto October 31,
2019)

BH Management LLP ( upto October 31, 2019)

Berggruen Estate Projects Private Limited ( upto October
31,2019)

Gemini Equipments and Rentals Private Limited (upto
October 31, 2019)

B.C.Equipment Trading Company Private Limited. ( upto
October 31, 2019)

-Mr. Jagdish Kumar Chawla( Director) ( from November 1,

2019)
-Mr. Davander Tomar(Director)( from November 1, 2019)

- Ms, Anshu Sarin (Whole Time Director & CEQ)
- Mr. Pradeep Mathur( Independent Director) ( from

November 5, 2019)

- Mr. Pramartha Saikia( Independent Director) ( from

N& Con
RPN
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November 5, 2019)
- Mr. Kabir Kewalramani (Director)(upto November 1,2019)

-Mr. Vikas Chadha(Director)(resigned March 31, 2019)
- Mr. Rajnita Kewalramani (Director)(from March 1§, 2019
to November 1, 2019)
- Mr. Shree Krishan Sharma (Director)(from July 7, 2019
to November 1, 2019)

Additional related parties as per Companies Act 2013 with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Chief Financial Officer : Mr. Anish Arora (from February 13, 2020)
Company Secretary + Mr. Mohit Arora(from February 13, 2020)
: Mr. Pratik Jagdish Sawant(from July 29, 2019 to December 2, 2019)
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The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for
the relevant financial year

March 31, March 31, April 1,
2020 2019 2018

(A) Transactions during the year
Purchase of services 2.27 102.07
Other related parties
BH Management LLP - 100.00
Berggruen Car Rentals Private Limited 2:27 2.07
Interest expense on 17.75 % Compulsory Convertible 74.71 447.02
Debentures of Rs.10 each
Other related parties
IMS Benelux Holdings Co-operative U.A. 74.71 447.02
Interest expense on 10 % Compulsory Convertible 21.34 17.12
Debentures of Rs.10 each
Holding Company
Berggruen Investments, Mauritius 21.34 17.12
Sale of Managed Contracts . =
Carnation Hotels Private Limited 1900.00 -
Sale of Brand
Carnation Hotels Private Limited 100.00 -
Interest income 119.94 752.61
Fellow subsidiaries
Keys Hospitality Private Limited - 5.44
UEI Global Education Private Limited - -
Other related parties
Berggruen Properties Private Limited 119.94 723.42
Gemini Equipments and Rentals Private Limited 15.12
B.C.Equipment Trading Company Private Limited 4.11
Berggruen Estate Projects Private Limited 342
BH Advisors Private Limited 1.10
Provison for doubtful interest accrued on loans - 50.68
Fellow subsidiaries
Keys Hospitality Private Limited - 8.13
UEI Global Education Private Limited - 717
Other related parties
Gemini Equipments and Rentals Private Limited 20.17
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March 31, March 31, April 1,

2020 2019 2018
BH Advisors Private Limited - 8.44
B.C.Equipment Trading Company Private Limited - 3.69 -
Berggruen Estate Projects Private Limited - 3.08 -
Loans given - 106.00 180.29
Fellow subsidiary
Keys Hospitality Private Limited - - 36.29
Other related parties
Berggruen Properties Private Limited - 6.00 60.00
Gemini Equipments and Rentals Private Limited - - 84.00
B.C.Equipment Trading Company Private Limited - 75.00 -
Berggruen Estate Projects Private Limited - 25.00 -
Repayment received of loans and advances given 109.00 75.00 22.62
Fellow subsidiaries
UEI Global Education Private Limited - - 2242
Other related parties
Berggruen Realties Private Limited - - 0.10
Berggruen Developers Private Limited - - 0.10
B.C.Equipment Trading Company Private Limited - 75.00 -
Berggruen Estate Projects Private Limited 25.00 - -
Gemini Equipments and Rentals Private Limited 84.00 - -
Provison for doubtful loans and advances - 42.06 -
Fellow subsidiaries
Keys Hospitality Private Limited - 36.29 -
UEI Global Education Private Limited - 3.58 -
Other related parties
BHI Capital Advisors Private Limited - 1.42 -
BH Advisors Private Limited - 0.77 -
Remuneration to directors 184.72 264.21
Key managerial personnel
Vikas Chadha - 113.80
Anshu Sarin 158.11 150.41
Shree Krishan Sharma 22.96 - -
Anish Arora 1.81 - -
Mohit Arora 0.89 - -
Pratik Jagdish Sawant 0.95 - -
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March 31, March 31, April 1,
2020 2019 2018

Issue of Class A - Equity Shares including securities - 1,462.93 1,280.74
premium

Holding Company

Berggruen Investments, Mauritius 1,462.93 1,280.74

Issue of 10 % Compulsory Convertible Debentures - 1,276.69 -

Holding Company

Berggruen Investments, Mauritius 1,276.69 -

Reimbursement of expenses paid on behalf of party

Holding company

Fleur Hotels Private Limited 0.11 - -

Loan Taken

Holding company

Fleur Hotels Private Limited 57.00 - -

Management fees(Net of taxes)

Ultimate holding company

Lemon Tree Hotels 272.80

Sale of Management Contracts (Gross)

Fellow Subsidiary Company

Carnation Hotels Private Limited 2,242.00

Sale of Brand(Gross)

Ultimate Holding Company

[Lemon Tree Hotels 112.00

(B) Balances outstanding at year end

- 2,518.41 2,518.41

17.75 % Compulsory Convertible Debentures

Other related parties

IMS Benelux Holdings Co-operative U.A. = 2,518.41 2,518.41

10 % Compulsory Convertible Debentures - 1,276.69 -

Holding Company

Berggruen Investments, Mauritius 1,276.69 -

Interest accrued but not due on 17.75 % Compulsory - 1,771.88 1,369.57
Convertible Debentures

Other related parties

IMS Benelux Holdings Co-operative U.A. 1,771.88 1,369.57
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March 31, March 31, April 1,
2020 2019 2018

Interest accrued but not due on 10 % Compulsory - 15.41 -
Convertible Debentures
Holding Company
Berggruen Investments, Mauritius 15.41
Loans and advances given - 2,934.18 2,903.18
Fellow subsidiaries
Keys Hospitality Private Limited - 36.29 36.29
UEI Global Education Private Limited - 3.58 3.58
Other related parties
Berggruen Properties Private Limited - 2,783.12 2,777.12
BH Advisors Private Limited - 0.77 0.77
BHI Capital Advisors Private Limited - 1.42 1.42
Berggruen Estate Projects Private Limited - 25.00 -
Gemini Equipments and Rentals Private Limited - 84.00 84.00
Interest accrued on loans given - 2,892.18 2178.55
Fellow subsidiaries
UET Global Education Private Limited - 7.17 7.17
Keys Hospitality Private Limited - 8.13 323
Other related parties
Berggruen Properties Private Limited - 2,841.50 2,154.25
BH Advisors Private Limited - 8.44 7.34
Berggruen Estate Projects Private Limited - 3.08 -
B.C.Equipment Trading Company Private Limited - 3.69 -
Gemini Equipments and Rentals Private Limited - 20.17 6.56
Provision for doubtful interest accrued on loans - 50.68 -
Fellow subsidiaries
Keys Hospitality Private Limited - 8.13 -
UEI Global Education Private Limited - 7.17 -
Other related parties
Gemini Equipments and Rentals Private Limited - 20.17 -
BH Advisors Private Limited - 8.44 -
B.C.Equipment Trading Company Private Limited - 3.69 -
Berggruen Estate Projects Private Limited - 3.08 -
Provison for doubtful loans and advances - 42.06 -
Fellow subsidiaries
Keys Hospitality Private Limited - 36.29 -

UEI Global Education Private Limited

3.58
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March 31, March 31, April 1,

2020 2019 2018
Other related parties
BHI Capital Advisors Private Limited 1.42 -
BH Advisors Private Limited 0.77 -
Accounts receivables 2354.00
Carnation Hotels Private Limited 2354.00 - -
Other payables 273.05 0.69 5.55
Ultimate Holding Company
Lemon Tree Hotels 272.80
Holding company
Fleur Hotels Private Limited 0.11 - -
Other related parties
Berggruen Car Rentals Private Limited 0.69 0.40
BH Advisors Private Limited - - 5:15
Anish Arora 0.14 - -
Loan taken from related party 57.00
Holding company
Fleur Hotels Private Limited 57.00 - -
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34. Fair value measurement

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the company and provides
additional information on the balance sheet. Details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for
recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of
each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument.

a. Financial Assets

Rs in lakhs
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
Amortised . :
FVTPL FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost Cost
Financial Assets
Trads Rerelvanltey - 2,594.91 - 1,397.64 - 1,278.44
Loans 704.40 3,691.76 3,695.90
Other bank balances - 38874 - 549 49 - 376.12
Cash and Cash ) i )
Equivalents 648.28 1,098.41 613.87
Qiteriinancial assets - 268.78 - 3,164.04 - 2,459.62
Total Financial . 4,605.11 . 9,901.34 . 8,423.95
Assets
Financial Liabilities
Rs in lakhs
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 April 1,2018
EVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost Cost

Borrowings - 11,761.14 - 16,009.42 - 17,381.93
TradePayables g 748.50 5 210.98 5 110.90
Other Financial
Liabilities ) 3,546.22 ) 35,500.99 ) 2,019.81
Jotat sinanchy - 16,055.86 ; 21,721.39 ; 19,512.64
Liabilities
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¢, Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities

Fair value measurcment

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between markel participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilitics measured at fair value into one of three levels
depending on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as
follows:

i) Level i

Tnputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

ii) Level 2

Inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included
within level | for the asset or liability,

iliy Level 3

Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to
observable related market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.
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35, Financial rislc management objectives and pelicies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial
assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly
from its operations.

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk and liquidity risk. The
Company's focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential
adverse effects on its financial performance.

Markef risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of interest rate risk. Financial instruments
affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.

Inferest rate risl

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating
interest rates. The Company is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company
expects the variable rate to decline, accordingly the Company is currently carrying its loans at variable
interest rates.

Rs. In lakhs
March 31,2020 | March 31,2019 | April [, 2018
Variable rate borrowings 11,761.14 14,876.28 16,248.79
Fixed rate borrowings = i -

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest
rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting.
With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the
impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars Increase/decrease in basis points Effect on profit before tax

Rs. In lakhs

March 31, 2020

Rs 50 66.87
Rs -50 (66.87)
March 31,2019

Rs 50 76.52
Rs -50 (76.52)

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily
trade receivables and deposits to landlords) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and

financial institutions and other financial instruments.

(a) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Company's established policy, procedures
and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed and individual
credit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in terms of number of days and amount.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition,
a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment
collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
financial assets disclosed in Note 9. The Company does not hold collateral as security.

Rs. in lakhs
Ageing 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18
Not due
0-60 days past due 2,594.91 1,397.64 1,278.44
61-120 days past due 2 - -
121-180 days past due % " -
180-365 days past due - ’ &
365-730 days past due . . &
more than 730 days - - -
Provision for doubtful debts (including provision for expected credit loss)
Rs. in lakhs

Ageing 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18

Not due - - -

0-60 days past due - - -

61-120 days past due - % -

121-180 days past due - " .
180-365 days past due - - -
more than 365 days 1,224.20 77.42 -




Berggruen Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts — Trade receivables (including provision for expected credit
loss)
Rs. in lakhs

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18
Provision at beginning 77.42 = -
Addition during the year 1146.78 77.42 5

Reversal during the year - - -

Utilised during the year - B )
Provision at elosing 1,224.20 7742 -

(b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department
in accordance with the Company's policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties
and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the
compenents of the balance sheet at 31 March 2020, 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2018 is the carrying amount as
illustrated in Note 9

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows, The Company's
objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts,
cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing
its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt
maturity within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders. There are no undrawn borrowing facilities at
the end of the reporting periods.
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

Rs in lakhs
Less than 3 3to12
On demand eo8 Than ° 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
months months

Year ended
March 31, 2020
Borrowings 1372.85 - - 1,309.22 9,079.07 11,761.14
Trade and other 748.50 } } . = 748.50
payables
Financial Liabilities 3,546.22 - - - - 3,54_6.22

5,667.56 - - 1,309.22 9,079.07 16,055.86
Year ended
March 31, 2019
Borrowings(excluding 1.469.71 60.00 2.730.00 10,616.57 - 14,876.28
debentures)
Trade and other 210.98 . . - - 210.98
payables
Othgr dues of other 5.500.99 . p - - 5500.99
creditors

7,181.68 60.00 2,730.00 10,616.57 - 20,588.25
As at April 1, 2018
Borrowings( excluding 588.72 60.00 2.193.50 13,406.57 - 16,248.79
debentures)
Trade and other 110.90 ) . 5 - 110.90
payables
Othe.r dues of other 2.019.81 ) . - . 2,019.81
creditors

2,719.43 60.00 2,193.50 13,406.57 - 18,379.50

The table provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as of March 31, 2020 as on
undiscounted basis

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019 | April 1,2018
Minimum Lease Payments :
Not later than one year 422.52 414.06 343.64
Later than one year but not later than five years 1,630.12 1,625.12 1,494.82
Later than five years 4,535.12 4,962.64 5,367.00

Total 6,587.76 7,001.82 7,205.46
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36. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management. capital includes issued equity capital, share
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary
objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings,
trade less cash and cash equivalents.

Rs in lakhs
31 March
h 31,2020 1 i
March 31, 20 2019 April 2018

Borrowings (Note 17) 11,761.14 16,009.42 17,381.93
Trade payables (Note 17) 748.50 210.98 110.90
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 9) 648.30 1,098.40 613.87
Net debt 11,861.34 15,122.00 16,878.96
Total capital (Note14A & 14B) 33.885.96 36,954.62 37,374.47
Capital and net debt 45,747.30 52,076.62 54,253.43
Gearing ratio 25.93% 29.04% 31.11%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended March 31, 2020 and 31 March 2019.

37. The Company has considered possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to
COVID 19 and has made detailed assessment of its going concern assumption, liquidity
position for next one year and believes that they can meet all their obligations with the support
of the parent company. Also, the parent Company confirms that they will provide unconditional
and irrevocable financial support by way of continuous investment in the Company in the form
of equity investment and unsecured loan, as and when required. In view of the above, these
accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

38. During the year, the Company received legal notices from its ex-employees demanding carried
interest payable to them based on the services rendered by these employees in the past. The
Company vide settlement letters dated 6 September 2019 settled the demand raised by these
employees by paying Rs. 85 lacs towards full and final settlement.
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39. First-time adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2020, are the first the Company has prepared
in accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2019, the
Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable
for periods ending on 31 March 2020, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2019, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing
these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April 2018, the
Company’s date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the
Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, inciuding the balance sheet as at 1 April
2018 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Estimates

The estimates at | April 2018 and at 31 March 2019 are consistent with those made for the same dates
in accordance with Indian GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies)
apart from impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model where application of

Indian GAAP did not require estimation.
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Company reconciliation of profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

Rs in lakhs

Particulars Foot | Indian GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
Note
No.

Revenue from operations 8,660.78 - 8,660.78
Other income 873.24 - 873.24
Total Income 9,534.02 - 9,534.02
Expenses
Cost of food and beverages consumed 1,805.90 - 1,805.90
Employee benefits expense v 3,029.93 (20.90) 3,009.03
Other expenses 2,511.43 - 2,511.43
Finance costs 2,272.00 - 2,272.00
Depreciation and amortization expense I 1,215.91 161.11 1,377.02
Total Expense 10,835.17 140.21 10,975.38
Loss before tax and exceptional items (1301.15) (140.21) (1441.36)
Tax expense:
(1) Current tax - - -
(2) Deferred tax I1I - (547.00) (547.00)
(3) Exceptional items 596.08 - 596.08
Loss for the year (1897.23) 406.79 (1,490.44)
Other comprehensive income - - -
Income Tax Effect 5 ‘ <
Re-measurements of defined benefit plans - (20.90) (20.90)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year IV (1897.23) 406.79 (1511.34)
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I

Iv.

VI

VIIL

Footnotes to the reconciliation of equity as at April 1, 2018 and March 31, 2019 and profit or loss for
the year ended March 31,2019

Property, Plant & Equipment

The Company has elected to measure the property, plant and equipment at the date of transition to
Ind ASs at its fair value and use that fair value as its deemed cost at that date.

Borrowings

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company has taken the valuation report for Compulsory
Convertible Debentures and accordingly, taken the impact equity component of debentures on the
transition from IGAAP to IND AS

Deferred tax

Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which
focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the
balance sheet and its tax base. In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary
differences.

Defined benefit liabilities

Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to its post-
employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under Indian GAAP, the entire cost,
including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to profit or loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements
[comprising of actuarial gains and fosses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability] are recognised immediately in
the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCL

Other comprehensive income

Under Indian GAAP, the Company has not presented other comprehensive income (CCI)
separately. Hence, it has reconciled Indian GAAP profit or loss to profit or profit or loss as per
Ind AS. The actuarial gain is recognised in OCI is in line with the actuarial report from certified
valuer in accordance with Ind AS 19,

Statement of cash flows

The transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS has not had a material impact on the statement of
cash flows.

Lease Liability and Return on Use

As per IND AS-116, the Company measures the lease lability at the present value of the lease
payments over the lease term. Accordingly, the lease liability has been created and the impact has
been taken Retrospectively as at March 31, 2019 and for the year ended March 31, 2019.
Accordingly, a right-of-use asset of Rs. 1,444.83lakhs and a corresponding lease liability of
Rs.3,092.96 lakhs has been recognized as on March 31, 2019.
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40. Segment Reporting

The Company is into Hoteliering business. The Board of Directors of the Company, which has been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company performance,
allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the Company as a

single unit. Therefore there is no reportable segment for the Company as per the requirements of Ind
AS 108 — “Operating Segments”.

Information about geographical areas

The Company has only domesiic cperations and hence no information required for the Company as
per the requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments”.

Information about major customers

No customer individually accounted for more than [0% of the revenue
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41. Details of ;
of dues to Micro, Smatl and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006.

e Rs. in lakhs
March 31, | March3|l,

2020 2019

the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to Nil Nil

any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

;?ﬁ arnosunt of interest gaid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Nil Nil

1cro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along
with .the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in Nil Nil
ma!*':mg payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each Nil Nil
accounting year; and

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the Nil Nil
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as
a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2000

As per our report of even date
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